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THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
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QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
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2. SEC R'egistration No. AS093-04369 3. BIRTIN. 002-825-058-000
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8. (02) 910-3040

Registrant's telephone number, including area code

9. Not Applicable
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and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Shares 4,582.356,268 ghares
Long Term Commercial Papers P2,000,000,000.00

11.  Are any or all of the securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange:
Yes [X] No[ ]

12.  Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule
17 thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11 (a)-1 thereunder and
Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the
preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file
such reports)

Yes [X] No[ ]
{b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes [X] No[ ] |



PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item L. Fiinancial Statements
The unfaudited consolidated financial statements are filed as part of the Form. It is prepared in
compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). PFRS includes statements namad PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and Fhilippine interpretations issued by the FRSC.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale financial assets that have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso,
which is the functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company. All values are rounded
to the nearest million peso, except when otherwise indicated.

item Il. Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Resuits of Operations (Unaudited)

Benpres Holdings Corporation (Benpres) reported P11.023 billion net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent for the first quarter of 2010, a reversal of the P176 million net loss
attributable to equity holders of the Parent in the first three months of 2009. Equity in net earnings
of associates soared 92x to P10.563 billion from P115 million year-on-year (YoY) as associate
First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC) completed the sale of a 6.7% stake in Meralco
during the period. Meanwhile, finance costs decreased by 16% to P360 million from P430 million
due to lower debt levels, following a significant buyback in August 2009.

Unaudited consolidated revenues of P7.752 billion in the first three months of 2010, an increase of
47% over the P5.289 billion posted in the same period last year, All revenue items (airtime +83%,
sales of services +7%, sale of goods +3%) reflect the consolidation of ABS-CBN Broadcasting
Corporation (ABS-CBN) accounts into Benpres. After deducting ABS-CBN expense accounts
namely;, agency commissions, incentives and co-producers’ share (+62%), production costs
{+24%} and cost of sales and services (+48%), net revenues (+45%) at P6.922 billion and gross
profit {(+57%) at P3.417 billion are all accounted for by ABS-CBN. General and administrative
expenses (+7%}) also reflect ABS-CBN operations.

Affiliates

ABS-CBN posted a six-fold jump in core net income for the first quarter of 2010 to P1.087 billion
from P191 million in 1Q2009. Consolidated advertising revenues leapt by 83% to P5.058 billion
from P2.764 billion YoY as total advertising minutes grew by 41%, with political and advocacy ads
accounting for 13% of total ad minutes.

Sky Cable Corporation (SkyCable), consolidated into ABS-CBN, posted a 14% growth in
consolidated revenues driven by higher revenue contribution of broadband services and other
revenues. SkyCable logged in a 76% YoY increase in broadband subscriptions and an 11% YoY
increase in prepaid cable service subscriptions.

Bayan's first quarter net revenues decline by 7% YoY to P1.522 billion from P1.641 billion, as a
result of lower outgoing and incoming fong distance. Data revenues were also slightly lower due to
lower domestic and international leased line revenues. EBITDA in the first quarter amounted to
P403 million, 24% lower than last year's P531 miilion. Bayan trimmed its net loss YoY to P78
million from P484 million last year. Bayan's financial results have no impact on Benpres' results as
this investment has been fully written off. The discussion on Bayan's first quarter results is for
information purpose only.

FPHC réported 138x net income attributable to equity holders of the Parent to P24.591 bitlion in
the first: quarter of 2010, from P178 million in the first quarter of 2009, primarily due to gain from

sale of 6.6% Meralco shares.



Key Performance Indicator

As a hoiding company, Benpres receives revenues from asset sales and dividends from
investees. Hence, the key performance indicator with the most direct impact on Benpres is the net
income: of investees. Any dividend received by Benpres is based on the investees’ net income in
the previous year. For the period in review, the financial performance of investees was within
expectations.

Financial Condition

Cash and cash equivalents (+48%), trade and other receivable-net (+9%), inventories at net
realizable value (+4%), current program rights and other intangible assets—current (-27%), other
current‘assets (-17%), noncurrent program rights and other intangible assets (+7%), deferred tax
assets (+9%), other noncurrent assets (+4%), trade and other payables (+17%), income tax
payable (-8%), accrued pension obligation (+6%), and other noncurrent liabilities (+11%) reflect
ABS-CBN accounts.

Net investments in and advances to associates (+61%) accounted for FPHC's sale of its 6.7%
stake in Meralco. Retained earnings grew by 70% to P26.665 billion as of end-March 2010 from
P15.640 billion as of yearend-2009 as Benpres posted a net income of P11.585 billion for the
period.

There are no any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have
material impact on the Company’s liquidity other than those disclosed above and in the notes fo
financial statements herein attached. Also, the Company has no material commitments for capital
expenditures and for new investments.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing
loans and borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, short-term
investments, AFS financial assets, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to fund the Company’s investments in associated companies and to raise
fund for:operations.

The Parent Company holds equity in subsidiaries and associates, which may or may not result in
receipt of dividends in a given year and has various other financial assets and liabilities which arise
directly from its operations.

ABS-CBN enters into derivative transactions, including principally interest rate swaps and cross
currency swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from ABS-
CBN's operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks that may arise from the Company’s financial instruments are foreign currency
exchange risk and revaluation risk, interest rate risk, cash flow (liquidity) risk, liquidity risk and
credit risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.

Foreign .Currency Exchange Risk and Revaluation Risk

Volatility in foreign currency exchange rates may expose the Parent Company to economic and
accounting losses related to large direct and indirect foreign currency-denominated obligations.
Extraordinary fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may affect reported operational
profits and deficit, potentially reducing the ability of subsidiaries and associates to declare
dividends.

The riski was eased by the debt buyback undertaken in 2009, which directly reduced the Parent
Company's foreign currency debt by US$249 million.



ABS-CBN s primary exposure to the risk in changes in foreign currency relates to ABS-CBN's
Iong-term debt obligation. Before the prepayment of all outstanding dollar loan obligations under
Tranche A of the SCA facility, approximately 26% of ABS-CBN's borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the operating unit. These were all covered by
cross currency swaps which have all been terminated as a result of the prepayment of the
underlying loan obligation. As of March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, there no outstanding
derivative contracts and all of ABS-CBN’s loan obligations are in Philippine currency.

Itis ABS-CBN's policy to enter into cross currency swaps to manage this risk and eliminate the
variability of cash flows due to changes in the fair value of the foreign currency-denominated debt
with maturity of more than one year,

Other than the debt obligations, ABS-CBN has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure
arises when the transaction is denominated in currencies other than the functionat currency of the
operating unit or the counterparty.

Interesti Rate Risk

Fluctuations in interest rates affect the company’s capital availability or cash flow risk as they
expose the Parent Company to variable cash requirements in relation to debt with floating interest
rates, including goodwil interest which is based on LIBOR and PDST-F.

The term sheet circulated by the Parent Company to creditors on December 19, 2008 includes
fixed interest rates for both Philippine Peso and US$ obligations.

ABS-CBN's exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to ABS-
CBN’s long-term receivable and debt obligations with floating interest rates.

To manage this mix in a cost-efficient manner, ABS-CBN entered into interest rate swaps, in
which ABS-CBN agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal
amount, These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. Before the
prepayment of all outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of the SCA facility and after taking
into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 43% of ABS-CBN's borrowings are at
a fixed rate of interest. However, in 2007, the derivative contracts that cover these swaps have
been terminated as a result of the prepayment of the underlying loan obligation. Without the
existence of any swaps, ABS-CBN's loan with fixed rate of interest is at about 25% of the total
loans at the end of 2009.

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less than three
months. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the
instrument. The other financial instruments of ABS-CBN that are not included in the above tables
are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

On the average, benchmark interest rates, 3-month PDST-F, decrease by 270 basis points since
the end of 2008. Looking at past trends, however, this has not always been the case with several
periods showing some upward adjustments due to several market pressures. Based on these
experiences, ABS-CBN provides the folfowing table to demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of ABS-CBN's income
before income tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no impact on the
ABS-CBN's equity other than those already affecting the net income.

Cash Flow (Liquidity) Risk

This risk refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to the risk of lower returns on its investments or
the necessity to borrow due to shortfalls in cash or expected cash flows, or variances in their
timing. The restructuring plan is based on cash flows from dividends and asset sales and these
may not come in as expected.
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The Term Sheet circulated by the Parent Company to creditors on December 19, 2008 offers
bullet payment of the principal amount at 12.5 years from Effective Date (the date on which such
Signing@Creditors accept the terms and conditions set out in the Term Sheet).

ABS-CBN seeks to manage its funds through cash planning on a weekly basis. This undertaking
specifically considers the maturity of the both financial investments and financial assets and
projected operational disbursements. As part of its liquidity risk management, ABS-CBN regularly
evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. As a general rule, cash balance should be equai to
200 million at any given time to compensate for operation exigencies in the periodic absence of
cash inflow.

ltis ABS-CBN s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through:the use of bank credit and investment facilities. As such, ABS-CBN continuously
assessés conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities. In
2008, ABS-CBN closed two fund raising activities with final maturity of up to 2015, Currently, the
debt maturity profile of the Company ranges from 3.7 years to 7.0 years.

Also, ABS-CBN places funds in the money market only when there are surpluses from ABS-CBN's
requirements. Placements are strictly made based on cash planning assumptions and as much
as possible, covers only a short period of time.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents amounting to P6.597 billion and P4.454 billion as of
March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively, with maturity of less than one year are
used to fund the Company's immediate liquidity requirements.

The financial liabilities of the Parent Company, except for trade and other payables, are due and
demandable since the Parent Company defaulted at maturity date. Interest is accrued and is
expected to be paid until such time that the liabilities are fully repaid. The Parent Company is
currently negotiating with its creditors for a restructuring of the direct and indirect obligations,
thus the maturity profile of financial liabilities above exclude interest.

Credit Risk

The Parent Company has advances in subsidiaries and associates but these comprise less than
5% of assets. Trade receivables refer to accounts under ABS-CBN, which are managed at the
ABS-CBN level. The Parent Company does not offer credit terms for the provision of services as
a holding company.

ABS-CBN is exposed to credit risk from operational and certain of its financing activities. On
ABS-CBN's credit risk arising from operating activities, ABS-CBN only extends credit with
recognized and accredited third parties. ABS-CBN implements a pay before broadcast policy to
new customers. To improve coliections over ABS-CBN’s trade receivables, ABS-CBN grants
discounts on early payment. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Such determination takes into consideration the age of the receivable and the current solvency of
the individual accounts.

With regard to ABS-CBN’s financing activities, as a general rule, ABS-CBN transacts these
activities with counterparties that have a long credit history in the market and outstanding
relationship with ABS-CBN. The policy of ABS-CBN is to have the BOD accredit these banks
and/or financial institutions before any of these financing activities take place.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of ABS-CBN, which comprise trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, AFS equity investments, and receivables from
related parties, ABS-CBN's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximuim exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

There |5| no requirement for collateral over trade receivables since ABS-CBN trades only with
recognized and accredited counterparties.
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The maxlmum exposure to credit risk is partly represented by the carrying amounts of the
fi nanmal assets that are reported in the consolidated statements of financial position.
The cred|t quality of the Parent Company’s financial assets was determined as follows:

High Credit Quality. This includes deposits or placements to counterparties with good credit
rating or bank standing. For receivables, this covers, as of report date, accounts with good credit
standing.

Low Credit Quality. This includes deposits or placements and receivables to counterparties that
are not classified as “high credit quality.”

The credit quality of the financial assets of ABS-CBN was determined as follows:

High Crédit Quality. This includes deposits or placements to counterparties with good credit

rating or bank standing. For receivabies, this covers, as of report date, accounts of good paying
customers, with good credit standing and with no history of account treatment for a defined

period. This also include claims from Elite subscribers, advance payers, airtime and channel lease
with advance payment arrangements, related parties with offsettlng arrangement and existing
employees.

Moderate Credit Quality. For receivables, this covers accounts of standard paying customers,
those whose payments are within the credit term, and new customers for which sufficient credit
history has not been established. This also includes claims from Superior subscribers, airtime and
channel lease and related parties without offsetting arrangement.

Low Credit Quality. For receivables, this covers accounts of slow paying customers and those
whose payments are received upon demand at report date. This also includes claims from Special
subscribers.

Trade Receivables

These represent amounts collectible from advertising agencies, advertisers or trade customers
arising from the sale of airtime, subscription, services and/or goods in the ordinary course of
business.

Airtime. This account refers to revenue generated from the sale of time or time block within the
on-air broadcast hours on television and radio.

Subscription Fees. This account refers to revenue generated from regular subscriber’s fees for
either: (1) access to programs aired through DTH and cable television systems, or (2) direct sale of
pubiications to subscribers.

Others. This account refers to other revenue generated from the sale of goods and services.

Nontrade Receivables
These represent claims, arising from sources other than the sale of airtime, subscription, services
and goods in the ordinary course of business, that are reasonably expected to be realized in cash.

Based 0h the cash flow projection, past due receivables are expected to be collected within 2010.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to arrive at a debt restructuring

agreement with its creditors in order to maximize shareholder value and to ensure that it maintains
healthy capital ratios and strong credit ratings while viably supporting its business to maximize
shareholder value.

Capital refers to the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company. As discussed
above, the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its long-term

direct and indirect obligations. The Parent Company's BSMP plans to address all its financial
obligations.
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Under tr!1e BSMP, cash is reserved for debt service and working capital requirements. The Parent
Company has no material commitments for capital expenditures and has not made any major
investments since 2002. Proceeds of asset sales are placed in short-term financial instruments
under the Parent Company's ISO-certified Money Market Operations procedure. Payment
requirements for goodwill interest and operating expenses are withdrawn using the same process.

ABS-CBN's approach focuses on efficiently aliocating internally generated cash for operational
requirements and investments to grow the existing business as well as to deliver on its
commitment of a regular dividend payout at a maximum of 50% of the previous year's net
income. Shortages if any and acquisitions or investments in new business are funded by the
incurrence of additional debt largely capped by existing loan covenants on financiat ratios.

As evidenced by the quarterly financial certificates that ABS-CBN issued to its lenders, all
financial ratios are within the required limits for the period in review.

Sky Cable did not comply with the debt service coverage ratio as required by the creditors in the

agreement. In December 2009 and on November 3, 2008, Sky Cable received a waiver of this
ratio from the majority of its creditors as required by the agreement.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

The Company has no other information that needs to be disclosed other than disclosures
made under SEC Form 17-C.



BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 31

December 31

2010

2009

ASSETS
Current Assets

(Amounts in Millions)

Cash and cash equivalents P6,597 4,454
Trade and other receivables - net 6,210 5722
Inventories - at net realizable value 175 169
Program rights and other intangible assets - current 690 949
Other current assets 927 1,121
Total Current Assets 14,600 12,415
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in and advances to associates - net 27,901 17,336
Property and equipment - net 15,044 15,135
Investmentiproperties - net 63 63
AFS financial assets - noncurrent 448 470
Program rights and other intangible assets - noncurrent 2,707 2,524
Goodwill 2,368 2,373
Deferred tax assets 699 642
Other noncurrent assets - net 3,201 3,073
Total Noncurrent Assets 52,431 41,616
TOTAL ASSETS R67,031 R54,031
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables R11,833 R10,127
Income tax payable 449 487
Current portion of interest-bearing loans and borrowings 3,507 3,558
Total Current Liabilities 15,789 14,172
Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - net of current portion 8,308 8,352
Accrued pension obligation 835 790
Deferred tax liabilities 510 512
Other noncurrent liabilities 639 577
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,292 10,231
Equity _
Capital stock 4,582 4,581
Additional paid-in capitat 6,768 6,766
Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets 59 59
Cumulative translation adjustments (80) 80)
Share in equity adjustment from translation of an associate (4,416) (4,366)
Share in unrealized gain on AFS financial assets of associates (4) 4
Retained earnings 26,663 15,640
Equity attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 33,572 22,604
Minority Interests 7,378 7,024
Total Equity 40,950 29,628
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY R67,031 m54,031

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



BENPRéS HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
|

Three Months Ended March 31
2010 2009
(Amounts in Millions, Except Eamnings Per Share Amounts)

REVENUE

Airtime . R5,058 R2,764
Sales of services 2,581 2,415
Sale of goods 113 110
7,752 5,289
LESS: AGI;ENCY COMMISSIONS, INCENTIVES
AND CO-PRODUCERS’ SHARE 830 512
NET REVENUE 6,922 4777
PRODUCTION COSTS 1,803 1,453
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES 1,702 1,151
GROSS PROFIT 3,417 2,173
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
General and administrative expenses (1,894) (1,763)
Finance costs (360) (430)
Equity in net earnings of associates 10,563 115
Interest incqme 65 -
Other income (expense) 175 {28)
8,549 {2,106)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 11,966 67
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX — Current (383) (149)
NET INCOME (LOSS) ®11,583 (P82)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent ®11,023 (P176)
Minority interests 560 894
m11,583 (m82)
Earnings per Share attributable to Equity Holders
of the Parent
Basic ‘ R2.4059 (R0.0384)
Diluted : 2.4044 (0.0382)

See accompanying Noles to Consolidated Financial Staterments.



BENPRéS HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOILIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended March 31

2010 2009
: {Amounts in Millions)
NET INCOIQ!E {LOSS) #11,583 (®82)
OTHER CdMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Share in equity adjustment from translation
of an associate (79) (90)
Share in unrealized loss on fair value adjustments
of AFS financial assets of associates (15) 14
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustments
of AFS financial assets — 47
: {(94) (16}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS) P11,489 (m109)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent Company ®10,965 (®192)
Minority interests 524 83
R11,489 (R109)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BENPRéS HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended March 31

2010 2009
{(Amounts in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax R11,966 R67
Adjustments! for:

Equity in net earnings of associates {10,563) (115)

Depreciation and amortization 848 556

Qthers . 4190 (14)
Operating income before working capital changes 2,661 494
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in current assets {294) (522)

Increasa in current liabilities: 2,029 960
Net cash flows from operations 4,396 932
Payments of.income taxes (376) {149)
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,020 783
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (Increase) in:

Property and equipment and other assets (575) (773)

Investments and advances - 48
Net cash flows used in investing activities {575) (725)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availments of interest-bearing loans and borrowings B B389
Decrease in:

Other noncurrent liabilities (887) (60)

Minority:interests (206) {11)
Acquisition of Philippine depository receipts (PDRs) {164)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities (1,257) 318
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,188 376
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {(45) 14
CASH AND|CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,454 4,222
CASH AND!CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR R6,597 R4,612

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statermnents.



BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Mllllons. Except Par Value and Per Share Amounts, Percentage of Ownership, and
Number of Shares and Units)

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations

a. Corpoiate Information

<

Benpres Holdings Corporation (Benpres or the Parent Company) is incorporated in the
Philippines. The Parent Company is involved in management and investment holdings of
subsidiaries and associates. The subsidiaries are mainly involved in the business of
broadcasting and entertainment. The Parent Compariy and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as “the Company”. The Company’s associates are involved in telecommunications,
and power generation and distribution. The Company disposed of its equity interests in an
associate involved in real estate development and roads and tollways in 2009 and 2008,
respectlvely

The Parent Company is a 52.84% owned subsidiary of Lopez, Inc. (Lopez), a Philippine entity
and the ultimate parent company.

The common shares of the Parent Company were listed in November 1993 and have since been
traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 4th Floor, Benpres Building, Meralco
Avenue, Pasig City.

On May 6, 2010, the board of directors of Benpres approved the change in its corporate name to
“Lopez Holdings Corporation” pending approval by the stockholders on June 10, 2010 at the
annual stockholders' meeting of Benpres.

Balanc'e Shest Management Plan (BSMP)

In 2002 the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its long-term
direct obligations and had guarantees and commitments to Bayan Telecommunications Holdings
Corporation (Bayantel), an associate.

The BSMP was created by the Parent Company in June 2002 to address all the outstanding
financial obiigations of the Parent Company, inciuding its guarantees and commitments to
Bayantel. The BSMP involves a series of activities, including restructuring of debt and disposal of
non-core assets, with the aim of reducing the outstanding financial obligations of the Parent
Company.

Under the BSMP, all the outstanding financial obligations of the Parent Company as of May 31,
2002 were proposed to be restructured and since December 2002, the Parent Company has
been making good faith semi-annual interest payments on its financial obligations. Interest for
the US dollar obligations is based on 6-month LIBOR rate plus 1% and for the Philippine Peso
obligation is based on 6-month PDST-F rate plus 1%, while interest paid on indirect obligations
are treated as advance payment of principal based on the original contracted terms.

On Mar’ch 13, 2003, the stockholders granted full authority to the BOD to negotiate with the
creditors without the need for prior approval from the stockholders. The BOD has the authority to
take all, actions and matters necessary and desirable for the restructuring of the Parent
Company s financial obligations under thea BSMP. The Parent Company appointed Ferrier
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Hodgson Corporate Advisory (WA) Pty Ltd. as its financial adviser to assist the Parent Company
in addressing its long-term direct and indirect obligations. To facilitate the overall process for the
financial restructuring of the Parent Company, the Benpres Creditors’ Committee was formed by
the creditors. On December 19, 2008, the Parent Company circulated to its creditors a Term
Sheeticontaining Primary Financial and Commercial Terms and Obligations for the restructuring
of Benpres financial obligations (Term Sheet). The primary financial terms of the restructuring
include the following, among others:

Bullet payments of the principal amount of the Existing Obligations on Principal Repayment
Date that is 12.5 years from Effective Date (the date on which such Signing Creditors’ accept
the terms and conditions set out in the Term Sheet), subject however to the Parent
Company’s right to refinance its outstanding obligations or conduct Debt Buyback in its sole
and absolute discretion in any amount and at any time up to and including the Principal
Repayment Date.

The Existing Obligations include the long-term direct and indirect obligations of the Parent
Company.

Interest will be fixed at 4% per annum (gross of tax) for US$ Obligations and fixed at 7% per
annum (gross of tax) for Philippine Peso Obligations.

Subject to availability of cash, the Parent Company may make an offer to buyback all or any
part of the Existing Obligations at a price that is no more than 60% of the principal amount.

Priority of cash flows for payment of debt is in the following order: (1) operating expenses; (2)
interest payments due to creditors; (3) any buyback proposal at the Parent Company's
discretion, and, (4) butlet principal repayment on the Principal Repayment Date.

Pursuént to the Term Sheet, the Parent Company may endeavor to dispose of its investments in
associates.

In conrﬁection with the BSMP, the Parent Company disposed of certain non-core assets or equity
interests in various investments and settied certain borrowings:

In 2007, the Parent Company officially exited from the business of Maynilad Water Services,
Inc. (Maynilad Water) and wrote off the guaranteed obligations of the Parent Company.
Maynilad Water was a subsidiary of the Company until July 20, 2005, when the Company lost
its power to govern the financial and operating policies of Maynilad Water pursuant to the
delivery to the Rehabilitation Receiver of Maynilad Water of an irrevocable proxy appointing
Metropolitan Water Works and Sewerage System (MWSS) or any of MWSS's authorized
representative as its proxy to attend, in the Company's stead, all meetings of Maynilad Water
and to vote all of the Benpres shares, specifically for the purpose of carrying out, or ensuring
the completion of the capital restructuring of Maynilad Water. '

1

In November 2007, the Parent Company and Lopez together settled the US$43 million worth
of debt held by Asian Infrastructure Fund (AIF), of which they are co-obligors. The debt was
settled for US$32 million with the Parent Company paying US$26 million and Lopez paying
US$6 million.

In 2008, the Parent Company disposed of its equity interest in First Philippine Infrastructure,
Inc. (FPII) to Metro Pacific Investments Corporation (MPIC) and certain AFS investments.

In 2008, the Parent Company disposed of its equity interest in Rockwell Land Corporation
(Rockwell) to First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC) and all its available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets in Digital Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. (Digitel).
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= On August 21, 2009, the Parent Company purchased from Avenue Capital Group,
US$252 million and R467 million of principal of its own debts or debts guaranteed by it, at an
overall price of 65% of the principal amount of those debts. The purchase price was seftled
in fuil. In 2009, the Parent Company purchased US$23 million, of its 7.875% Notes from
various creditors, at an overall price of 60% of the principal amounts. The Parent Company
also purchased from various creditors R178 million of Long-term Commercial Papers (LTCP)
at:60% of the principal amount.

Long-term direct obligations of the Parent Company that are due for payment as of March 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009 amounted to R2,886 million and R2,932 million, respectively . As of
May 14, 2010, four (4) creditors holding US$5.3 million (R245 million) of outstanding debt
accepted the Term Sheet.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Parent Company
will continue to operate as a going concern even if there exists some uncertainty in the
restructuring of the remaining debt of the Parent Company.

2. Transfer of Media Interest, Business Combination, Acquisition and Re-organization

On April 24, 1998, as approved by the National Telecommunications Commission (NTC)on

March 16, 1998 and the creditors of the Parent Company on April 21, 1998, the Parent Company
transferred its ownership in ABS-CBN and Sky Vision Corporation (Sky Vision) to Lopez. The
transfer included 553,457,304 shares of ABS-CBN at its market value of R16.50 per share equivalent
to ®9,132 million and 162,463,400 shares of Sky Vision at its book value of R2.75 per share
equivalent to R447 million in exchange for cash of R75 million and Convertible and Nonconvertible
Notes (Lopez Notes) of ®9,504 million (Convertible Notes of ®5,504 million and Nonconvertible Notes
of ®4,000 million). The Lopez Notes are secured by a pledge of the shares transferred and all
subsequent shares distributed to Lopez by reason of its holdings of ABS-CBN and Sky Vision shares.
After the transfer, Lopez assumed all voting rights associated with the shares. The ABS-CBN and
Sky Vision shares were also released from negative pltedge covenants included in the terms of
outstanding LTCPs.

The Lopez Notes are payabie on April 24, 2013 (Maturity Date). Lopez has the option to redeem the
Lopez Notes at any time, subject to certain conditions provided for in the Agreement by both parties.
The Parent Company has the option to convert the Convertible Lopez Notes into 553,457,304 shares
of ABS-CBN and 162,463,400 shares of Sky Vision (Conversion Quantity) at a conversion price of B
5,504 million until Maturity Date or redemption date, as the case may be. The conversion quantity
and price are subject to adjustments as provided for in the Agreement. The Lopez Notes may be
repaid in whole or in part on or before the Maturity Date. The Lopez Notes are terminated on any
earlier date if the Convertible Lopez Notes have been properly converted and Lopez has satisfied its
obligations with respect to Convertible Lopez Notes. The Lopez Notes bear an annual interest of
1.5%, subject to adjustments as agreed by both parties.

As of March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the outstanding Lopez Notes amounted to R9,804
million and R9,463million, respectively. The underlying shares totaled 446,800,022 ABS-CBN shares
in 2009 [including 568,415 Philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) in 2009], and 162,463,400 Sky
Vision shares in 2009.

As of May 1'7, 2010, the shares of stock in ABS-CBN and Sky Vision are still under the name of
Lopez. Consequently, Lopez has the power to vote over those shares. The Parent Company has not
exercised its option to convert the Lopez Notes into ABS-CBN and Sky Vision shares, respectively.

ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN is incorporated in the Philippines. lts core business is television and radio broadcasting.
Its subsidiaries and associates are involved in the following related businesses: cable and direct-to-
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home (DTI?—I) television satellite distribution and telecommunications services overseas, movie
production; audio recording and distribution, video/audio post production, and film distribution. Other
activities of the subsidiaries include merchandising, internet and mobile services and publishing.

The convertibility feature of the Lopez Notes pertaining to ABS-CBN qualifies as “potential voting
rights” under PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Under PAS 27, the
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including
potential voting rights held by another entity, are considered when assessing whether an entity has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity. Consequently, for financial
reporting purposes, ABS-CBN is considered a subsidiary of the Parent Company. Accordingly, the

- Lopez Notes pertaining to ABS-CBN is eliminated for consolidation purposes.

Sky Vision.
Sky Vision is a holding company of various subsidiaries mainly involved in cable television services in
Metro Manila and in certain provincial areas in the Philippines.

The convertibility feature of the Lopez Notes pertaining to Sky Vision qualifies as “potential voting
rights” under PAS 28, Investments in Associates. Under PAS 28, the existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights held by
other entities, are considered when assessing whether an entity has significant influence.
Consequently, for financial reporting purposes, Sky Vision is considered an associate of the Parent
Company, which is accounted for under the equity method.

a. Conversion of Sky Cable Note issued to ABS-CBN and outstanding advances by ABS-CBN and
Parent Company and Consolidation of Sky Cable Corporation (Sky Cable)

On June 30, 2004, Sky Vision and Sky Cable (“Issuer”) issued a Convertible Note (Sky Cable
Note) to ABS-CBN amounting to US$30.0 million (equivalent to 1,581 million). The amount for
conversion also includes advances and of the Parent Company to Sky Cable amounting to B
253 million.

The Sky Cable Note was subject to interest of 13.0% compounded annually and matured on
June 30, 2006. The principal and accrued interest as of maturity date is mandatorily converted
into common shares of the Issuer, based on the prevailing USD to Philippine Peso exchange rate
on maturity date, at a conversion price equivalent to a 20% discount of: (a) the market value of
the shares, in the event of a public offering of the Issuer before maturity date; (b} the valuation of
the shares by an independent third party appraiser that is a recognized banking firm, securities
underwriter or one of the big three international accounting firms or their Philippine affiliate jointly
appointed by Lopez and the Parent Company (collectively referred to as Benpres Group) and
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company and Mediaquest Holdings, Inc. {collectively
referred to as PLDT Group) pursuant to the Master Consolidation Agreement dated July 18,
2001, as amended or supplemented.

The Sk'yr Cable Note does not specifically state that interest shall accrue after June 30, 2006 in
the event that the Sky Cable Note is not converted for any reason. Thus, no interest was charged
after June 30, 20086,

As of December 31, 2007, the conversion price of the Sky Cable Note was not yet been
determined. Based on the provisions of the Sky Cable Note, the conversion of the Sky Cable
Note cannot be completed without the determination of the conversion price, which in turn
depends on the valuation of Sky Cable by an independent third party. Thus, ABS-CBN and the
Parent Company did not convert the Sky Cable Note at that time without such valuation. The
conversion date was effectively extended until the final valuation of Sky Cable.

On May 20, 2008, the Benpres Group and the PLDT Group acknowledged the fairness and
reasonableness of the valuation for Sky Cable as of March 15, 2008. Based on this final
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valuation, ABS-CBN's Sky Cable Note of 2,499 million, including advances and interest of 918
million,; had an equivalent subscription of 269,645,828 Sky Cable shares, representing 65.3%
effective interest in Sky Cable. On the other hand, the Parent Company's advances to Sky Vision
amounting to P253 million had an equivalent subscription of 27,264,843 Sky Cable shares,
representing 6.6% effective interest in Sky Cable. Consequently, for financial reporting purposes,
effective March 15, 2008, Sky Cable is considered as a subsidiary of ABS-CBN. The combined
interest of the Parent Company and ABS-CBN in Sky Cable is 71.8% while the effective interest
of the Company in Sky Cable is 45.1%.

On December 23, 2008, ABS-CBN, the Parent Company, SkyVision and Sky Cable entered into
an Assignment Agreement, where ABS-CBN and the Parent Company assigned the Sky Cable
Note and advances in Sky Cable to Sky Vision in consideration of PDRs to be issued by Sky
Vision upon approval by the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) of the
increase in the authorized capital stock of Sky Cable. Pursuant to this Assignment Agreement,
Sky Vision is contractually bound to issue the PDRs to ABS-CBN and the Parent Company upon
issuance of the underlying Sky Cable shares to Sky Vision.

The PDRs wilt grant ABS-CBN and the Parent Company the right, upon payment of the exercise
price and subject to certain other conditions, the delivery of Sky Cable shares or the sale of and
delivery of the proceeds of such sale of Sky Cable shares. The PDRs may be exercised at any
time by ABS-CBN and the Parent Company, thus, providing potential voting rights to ABS-C8N
and the Parent Company. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of the
underlying Sky Cable shares are received by Sky Vision. After deducting administrative
expenses for the maintenance of the PDR structure, Sky Vision shall distribute the proceeds to
ABS-CBN and the Parent Company.

While Sky Vision is the legal-owner of the subscription to the 65.3% effective interest in Sky
Cable, effectwely, ABS-CBN and the Parent Company has the economic interest over the
underlying Sky Cable shares by virtue of the PDRs. The voting rights will remain with Sky Vision
as legal owner. However, by virtue of the PDRs, ABS-CBN and the Parent Company have
economic benefits over the underlying Sky Cable shares and voting rights upon exercise of the
PDRs.

The 296,910,671 Sky Cable shares were issued to Sky Vision in October 2009. However, as of
April 12, 2010, the PDRs of Sky Vision have not yet been issued to ABS-CBN and the Parent
Company

The conversion of Sky Cable Note in 2008 was considered as a business combination and
accounted for using purchase method. Accordingly, the consideration of ®2,752 million was
ailocated to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on the fair values at conversion date. The
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Sky Cable at the date of conversion and the
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the conversion were;

Fair Value
Recognized Carrying
on Conversion Value
_ {Amounts in Millions)
Cash and cash equivalents R837 R837
Trade and other receivables 394 394
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 603 603
Property and equipment 4,960 3,548
Customer relationships 607 -
Other noncurrent assets 1,378 1,468
Trade and other current liabilities (2,562) (2,562)

Long-term debt {2,920) {2,920)



Fair Value

Recognized Carrying

on Conversion Value

(Amounts in Millions)

Due to related parties (674) {674)

Deferred tax liabilities {615) -

Other noncurrent liabilities {213) (213)

Net assets . 1,795 R481
Combined interest* 71.9%
Net assets acquired 1,290
Goodwill arising from the acquisition 1,462
Consideration . R2,752

* For purposes of computing goodwill, the combined interest represents 65.3% direct equily
interest .
of ABS-CBN and 6.6% direct equity interest of the Parent Company.

There IS no cash outflow on the conversion of Sky Cable Note.

From the date of conversion of the Note up to December 31, 2008, Sky Cable has contributed B
29 million to the net income of ABS-CBN. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of
2008, the net income of ABS-CBN for the year ended December 31, 2008 would have been B
1,441 million and revenue would have been R25,868 million.

On February 19, 2009, the BOD of ABS-CBN approved the additional conversion of

®1,798 million loan to Sky Cable and R900 million advances to Sky Vision to PDRs covering
278, 588 814 Sky Cable shares at conversion price of R9.69 a share. The conversion was
considered an acquisition of minority interest. Upon conversion of the foregoing loan and
advances, the effective interest of the Company increased from 45.1% to 53.3%.

On March 2, 2009 by virtue of a separate Assignment Agreement, ABS-CBN assigned the

1,798 m|II|on loan to Sky Vision. As a consideration for the assignment, Sky Vision agreed to
issue FDRs which shall be convertible into Sky Cable shares. The terms of the agreement are
similar'to the Assignment Agreement discussed in the foregoing. On March 2, 2009, the effective
interest of ABS-CBN in Sky Cable increased from 65.3% to 79.3%. As of

May 17, 2010, the additional PDRs of Sky Vision has not yet been issued to ABS-CBN.

Acquisition of Minority Interest of PCC

On May 23, 2008, Sky Vision acquired the minority interest in PCC through the purchase of all
the common shares in and convertible notes and advances of Sun Cable Hoidings, Incorporated
(SCHI).for a cash payment of B1,248 million and an assumption of the outstanding loan obligation
of Telemondial Holdings, Inc. (THI) in the amount of

R100 million. SCHI owns THI, which in turn owns the minority interest in PCC., On the same
date, Sky Vision and Sky Cable agreed that such shares and debt shall be transferred to Sky
Cable. Consequently, for financial reporting purposes, PCC became a wholly owned subsidiary
of Sky Cable as of that date. On December 23, 2008, Sky Vision assigned all its common shares
in SCHI to Sky Cable pursuant to this agreement. The difference between the fair value of the
consideration transferred and liability assumed and the carrying value of the minority interest in
PCC, amounting to R558 million, is recognized as goodwill . Acquisition of Minority Interest in
ABS-CBN International

In December 2009, ABS-CBN acquired from Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (BTI) its 2%
interest in ABS-CBN International for US$6 million (R277 million} which is payable over a period
of three years beginning January 2010 until December 2012 or as may be extended for a longer
period as agreed by both parties. The parties also agreed that ABS-CEN shall have the option to
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pay the consideration by way of the following products and services of ABS-CBN which may be
availed by BT during the payment term:

= commercial advertising airtime for BTI's products and services:

* sponsorship in various ABS-CBN-produced programs and/or ABS-CBN-organized special
avents;

" co?—branded marketing and promotional campaigns; and
. otﬁer media-related projects.

The excess of the consideration over the carrying value of the minority interest in ABS-CBN
International amounting to ®229 million was recognized as goodwill in the 2009 consolidated
statement of financial position.

As of December 31, 2009, payable arising from the transaction amounted to B277 million. The
current portion amounting to ®32 million was presented as part of “Due to related parties” in
the “Trade and other payables” account while the noncurrent portion amounting to B185 million
was presented as part of “Due to a related party” in the “Other noncurrent liabilities” account.

In December 2009, ABS-CBN assigned its 2% share in ABS-CBN International to ABS-CBN
Global'in exchange for additional common shares in ABS-CBN Global. Consequently, ABS-CBN
Global became the 100% owner of ABS-CBN Internationai. This assignment has no impact on
the consolldated financial statements.

¢. Re-organization of ABS-CBN Global

On January 7. 2009, ABS-CBN Hungary was incorporated to be the holding company of certain
international subsidiaries. On May 19, 2009 and June 19, 2009, ABS-CBN Hungary incorporated
ABS-CBN Netherlands and established a branch in Luxembourg, respectively, which are intended
to conduct the management of other business enterprises within the ABS-CBN Group.

in December 2009, ABS-CBN Global transferred its 100% ownership interest in ABS-CBN
International to ABS-CBN Hungary in exchange for the issue of a US$81 million equity note and
the assumption of an existing US$5 million note by ABS-CBN Hungary. Consequently, ABS-CBN
Hungary became the new holding company for ABS-CBN International as of December 31, 2009.
This has no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
derivative financial instruments and AFS financial assets that have been measured at fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Parent Company. Ali values are rounded to the nearest million peso,
except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards Council (FRSC). PFRS includes statements named PFRS, Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations issued by the FRSC.
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Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Company's accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous financiat year, except for
the adoption of PFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations, and PAS 27 (Revised), Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements which the Company adopted starting January 1, 2010. These
standards superseded the existing PFRS 3 and PAS 27, respectively, with earlier application
permitted.. PFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business
combinations that will impact the amount of goodwill recognized, the reported resuits in the period in
which an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. PAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such
change will have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the
amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of
control of a subsidiary. The changes introduced by PFRS 3 (Revised) must be applied prospectively
while PAS 27 (Revised) must be applied retrospectively subject to certain exceptions. These will
affect future acquisitions and transactions with minority interest.

Adoption of the following new, revised and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) did not have impact on the
Company;

»  Amendment to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged
ltems

* Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and PAS 39, Financial
Insiruments and Measurement - Embedded Derivatives

* Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 17, Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Qwners

Amendment to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Group Cash-seftled Share-based Payment
Transactions

Change in Presentation of Consolidated Statement of Income. In 2010, the Company changed the
presentation of its interim consolidated statement of income to present gross profit. The 2008 interim
consolidated statements of income were revised to conform with the 2010 presentation.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolldated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company as of
December 31 each year. Control is normally evidenced when the Parent Company owns, either
directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting rights of an entity’s capital stock.

The following are the subsidiaries, which the Parent Company has direct control of, as of March 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009:

Country Functional Percentage
of Incorporation  Principal Activities Currency of Ownership
ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN)  Philippines Broadcasting and film  Philippine peso 573
and Subsidiaries (see Note 4)* distribution
Bayanmap Corporation (Bayanmap) Philippines Information service Philippine peso 51.0
provider

* After the effect of Philippine Depository Receipts (PDRs) convertible to common shares, percentage of ownership is 58.97% in 2010 zme
2009 and, 58.5% in 2608.

The following are the entities in which the Parent Company has indirect control through its subsidiary,
ABS-CBN, as of March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009;

Indirect Ownership

] Place of Functional Through ABS-CBN
Company Incorporation Principal Activities Currency 2010 2009
ABS-CBN Global Ltd.(ABS-CBN Cayman Islands Holding company United States 160.0 1000

Global %" Dollar (USD)



Indirect Ownership

. Place of Functional Through ABS-CBN
Company | Incorporation Principal Activities Cutrency 2010 2009
ABS-CBN!Europe Ltd. United Kingdom Cable and satellite Great Britain 1000 1000
{ABS-CBN Europe)™® programming services Pound (GBP)
ABS-CBN!Japan, Japan Cable and satellite Japanese Yen 1000 1000
Inc.{ABS-CBN Japan)**"* programming services (JPY)
ABS-CBN:Middle East Dubai, UAE Cable and satellite uUsD 100.0 100.0
FZ-LLC(ABS-CBN programming services
Middle East)®
ABS-CBN|Middle East LLC™  Dubai, UAE Trading UsD 100.0 1000
E-Money Plus, Inc. Philippines Services - money Philippine Peso 100.0 100.0
: remiftance
ABS-CBN Globa! Hungary Kft.  Budapest, Hungary Holding company UsSD 100.0 1000
{ABS-CBN H PR
ABS-CBN'International™™  Califomnia, USA  Cable and satellite USD 100.0 1000
: programming services
ABS-CBN-Australia Pty. Ltd.  Victoria, Australia  Cable and satellite Australian Dollar 1000 100.0
(ABS-CBN Australia)®®® programiming services {AUD)
ABS-CBN Telecom North California, USA Telecommunications uUsD 1000 1000
America, Inc @00
ABS-CBN Canada, ULC Canada Cable and satellite Canadian Doilar 1000 1000
{ABS-CBN Canada)®™® programming services (CAD)
ABS-CBN Global California, USA Services - money USD 100.0 100.0
Remittance Inc %) remittance
ABS-CBN Global Netherlands Amsterdam, Intermediate holding and ~ European 100.0 1000
B.V.(ABS-CBN Netherlands financing company Monetary
Netherlands) ™ Union (EUR)
ABS-CBN Center for Philippines Educational/training Philippine Peso 100.0 1000
Communication Arts, Inc.”
ABS-CBN Global Cargo Philippines Non-vessel operations USD 100.0 100.0
Corporation® cOmmon carrier
ABS-CBN Film Productions, Inc,  Philippines Movie production Philippine Peso 100.0  100.0
(ABS-CBN Films)
ABS-CBN Interactive, Inc, Philippines Services - interactive media Philippine Peso 1000 100.0
{ABS-CBN Interactive)
ABS-CBN Multimedia, Inc. Philippines Digital electronic content  Philippine Peso 100.0 100.0
(ABS-CBN Multimedia) distribution
ABS-CBN Intégrated and Strategic Philippines Real estate Philippine Peso 100.0 1000
Property Holdings, Inc.
ABS-CBN Publishing, Inc. Philippines Print publishing Philippine Pego 1000 100.0
(ABS-CBN Publishing)
Culinary Publications, Inc. Philippines Print publishing Philippine Peso 100.0 100.0
ABS-CBN Shared Service Center  Singapore Services-support Singapore Dollar 100.,0 1000
PTE. Lid ®0 (SGD)
Creative Programs, Inc. (CPI) Philippines Content development and  Philippine Peso 1900 100.0
programming services
Professional Services for Philippines Services - production Philippine Peso 1000 1000
Television & Radio, Inc.
Sarimanok News Network, Inc. Philippines Content development and  Philippine Peso 1000 100.0
programming services
Slar Recording, Inc. Philippines Audio and video Philippine Peso 1000 §00.0
production and
: distribution
Star Songs, Inc. Philippines Music publishing Philippine Peso 1000 1000
Studio 23, Inc. (Studio 23) Philippines Content development and  Philippine Peso 100.0 1000
Programming services
The Big Dipper Digital Content & Philippines Digital film archiving and  Philippine Peso 100.0 1000
Design, Inc. (Big Dipper) central library, content
licensing and
transmission
TV Food Chefs, Inc. Philippines Services - restaurantand  Philippine Peso 1006 1000
food
Roadrunner Network, Inc, Philippines Services - post production  Philippine Peso 989 939
{Roadrunner)
Sky Cable Corporation Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 753
{Sky Cable)}™ (see Note 4a)
Bright Moon Cable Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 79.3 79.3
Networks, Inc.
Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 79.3 79.3

Cavite Cabli: Corporation



-10 -

Indirect Ownership
Place of Functicnal Through ABS-CBN
Company Incorporation Principal Activities Currency 2010 2009
Cepsil Consultancy and Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 79.3
Management Corporation
HM Cable Networks, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 79.3
HM CATV, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
Hotel Interactive Systems, Inc.  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
Isla Cable TV, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 79.3
Satellite Cable TV, Inc, Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 79.3 79.3
Sunvision Cable, Inc. Philippines Cabie television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
Sun Cable Holdings, Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
lncorpot:ated (SCHI)
Tarlac Cable Television Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
Network, Inc.
JMY Advantage Corporation  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 753 753
Suburban Cable Network, Inc.  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Feso 737 7T
Discovery Cable, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 555 555
Home-Lipa Cable, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 47.6 476
Pilipino Cable Corporation Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
(PCC) .
Bisaya Cable Television Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
Network, Inc,
Moonsat Cable Television, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 79.3
Sun Cable Systems Davao, Inc. Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
Telemondial Holdings, Inc.’®  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 793 793
First llocandia CATV, Inc.™  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 722 722
Maclan CATV Network, Inc."™ Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 722 722
Pacific CATY, Inc.™ Philippines Cabie television services  Philippine Peso 7221 722
Cebu Cable Television, ne.™  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 508 508
Davao Cableworld Network,  Philippines Cable television services  Philippine Peso 476 476
Inc.

@) With branchs in the Philippines and Taiwan

®) With branches in Italy and Spain

 Subsidiary of ABS-CBN Europe
“ Incorporated and started commercial operations in 2009
© Through ABS-CBN Global in 2008 and 2007

1)

Nonstock ownership interest

@ Subsidiary of SCHI

™ Considered s Joreign subsidiary

“ Subsidiary of ABS-CBN International

o

With a branch in Lixembourg

" Incorporated in 2008 and started commercial aperations in 2009
With a regional operating headquarters in the Philippines
™ Subsidiary of PCC

W

™ Pertains 1o the interest of ABS-CBN, the Parent Company has direct ownership of 6.6%. The effective interest of the Company is 53.3%
in 2010and 2009.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same financial reporting year as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets and liabilities, are eliminated in
full on consolidation. Unrealized gains and losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company.
Control is achieved when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertibie are considered when assessing whether an entity
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity.

Consolidatibn of subsidiaries ceases when control is transferred out of the Company. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated statement of
income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.
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As a result of the conversion of Sky Cable Note in 2008, the related accounts of Sky Cable and its
subS|dJar|es have been included in the consolidated financial statements effective March 15, 2008.

I
Minority Interests
Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the
Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and within equity in
the consolidated statement of financial position, separate from the equity attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company.

Acquisition: of minority interests is accounted for using the parent entity extension method, whereby,
the difference between the fair value of the consideration and the carrying value of the share in the
net assets acquired is recognized in goodwill.

The proportlonate amount of the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities upon acquisition of a
consolidated subsidiary and any subsequent changes in equity of a consolidated subsidiary
attributable to a minority shareholder's interest are shown separately as “Minority interests” account in
the consolidated statement of financial position. A minority shareholdar's interest in the results of
operations;of a subsidiary is shown as “Minority interests” account in the consolidated statement of
income. Any losses applicable to a minority shareholder in a consolidated subsidiary in excess of the
minority shareholder’s equity in the subsidiary are charged against the minority interest to the extent
that the minority shareholder has binding obligation to, and is able to, make good of the losses.

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase accounting method. This involyes
recognizing identifiable assets (including previously unrecognized intangible assets} and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring) of the acquired business at fair
value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs.
The minority interest is measured at the proporticnate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Business combinations achieved in stages are accounted for as separate step acquisition. Any
additional acquired share of interest does not affect previously recognized goodwill.

Goodwilt acqunred in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Company's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-
generating;units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Company are assigned to
those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest leve! within the Company at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation in determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus
cumulative exchange differences arising from the transtation and goodwill is recognized in the
consolidated statements of income.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

Functional énd Presentation Transfation. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Philippine Peso, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Parent Company. Each
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entity determines its own functional currency, which is the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity, and items included in
the fi nancnaI statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

The functhnal currency of all the subsidiaries, except foreign subsidiaries, is the Philippine Peso.
The functional currencies of the foreign subsidiaries are disclosed under the Basis of Consolidation
section. As of financial reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are transiated
into the presentation currency of the Company (the Philippine Peso) at the rate of exchange ruling at
reporting date and, their statements of income are translated at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The exchange differences arising from the translation are taken directly to “Exchange
differences on translation of foreign operations” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income and “Cumulative translation adjustments” account within the equity section of the
consolidated statements of financial position. Upon disposal of any of these foreign subsidiaries, the
deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that particular foreign subsidiary will be
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Forefgn Currency-denominated Transactions. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
in the functional currency exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency exchange rate
at financial reporting date. All differences are taken to the Consolidated Statement of income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the eéxchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determlned

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognmon Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchasesior sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulat:on or convention in the marketplace are recognized on trade date basis. Derivatives are
recognlzed on trade date basis.

Initial Recqgniﬁon of Financial Instruments. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value. The initial measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs, except for
financial instruments which are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held
to maturity {(HTM) investments, AFS financial assets and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities
are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities at amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are
quoted in an active market. The Company determines the classification of its instruments at initial
recognition and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every financial
reporting date.

Determination of Fair Value. The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in
organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transactions costs, that are active at the close of business at the reporting date. When current bid
and asking: prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the
current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since
the time of the transaction.

For investniments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using reference to similar instruments for which observable
prices exist, discounted cash flows analyses, and other relevant valuation models.
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“Day 1” Profit or Loss. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1" profit or loss} in the consolidated
statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where
useis made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model
value is onIy recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the inputs become observable
or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1" profit or loss amount.

Financial Assets or Liabilities at FVPL. Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL include financial
assets and liabilities held for trading, financial assets and liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVPL, and derivative instruments, unless these are designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge.

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling and repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets or liabilities may be designated at initial recognition as at FVPL if any of the following
criteria are' met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on a different basis;
(i) the assets or liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, or liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless
the embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no
analysis, that it would not be separately recorded.

Financial assets or liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are accounted for in the consolidated statement of
income. Interest earned or incurred and dividend income are recorded as income or expense,
respectively while dividend income is recorded as other income according to the terms of the contract
or when the right of payment has been established.

The Company’s embedded derivatives are classified under this category (see Notes 10 and 33).
Except for these embedded derivatives, there are no other financial assets and liabilities at FVPL.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale, are not classified as financial assets at FVPL and are not
designated as AFS financial assets or HTM investments.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are integral part of
the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in interest income in the consolidated
statement of income, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income as provision for doubtful accounts.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from financial
reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

This category includes the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, trade and other
receivables, and advances to associates.

HTM investments. Quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities are classified as HTM investments when the Company has the positive intention and
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ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in
this category. After initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is computed as the
amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumuiative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognized amount and the
maturity amount, less allowance for impairment. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. Gains and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as
through the amortization process.

The Company has no HTM investments as of March 31, 2010 and 2009.

AFS Finan¢ial Assefs. AFS financial assets are those nonderivative financial assets that are
designated as AFS or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. These are
purchased and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. The effective vield
component of debt securities classified as AFS financial assets, as well as the impact of restatement
on foreign currency-denominated debt securities classified as AFS, is reported in the consolidated
statement of income. The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial
assets are presented as other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or
determined; to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the other
comprehensive income is included in the consolidated statements of income. Assets under this
category are classified as current assets if management intends to sell these financial assets within
12 months from financial reporting date. Otherwise these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Company’s AFS financial assets include investments in quoted and unquoted ordinary common
shares.

Other Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified under this category if these are not held
for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These inciude liabilities
arising from operations or borrowings.

Other liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains or losses are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
amortization process.

Expenditures incurred in connection with availments of long-term debt are deferred and amortized
using effective interest method over the term of the loans. Debt issue costs are netted against the
related long-term debt allocated correspondingly to the current and noncurrent portion.

The Company's other financial kabilities at amortized cost include trade and other payables, interest-
bearing loans and borrowings, estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments, obligations for
program rights and customers’ deposits.

Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all the
following conditions are met: (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the economic characteristic of the host contract; (b) a separate instrument
with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of the derivative; and (c)
the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured at FVPL.
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The Company assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host
contracts when the Company first becomes party to the contract. Re-assessment only occurs if there
is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required.

Imgairmenti of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at'each financial reporting date whether a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired.

Loans and Receivables For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Company first
assesses whether an objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually;significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant, If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognized'are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the (oss is
recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

If in case the receivable has proven to have no realistic prospect of future recovery, any allowance
provided for such receivable is written off against the carrying value of the impaired receivable. If, in
a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases and the
increase or decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost at the reversai date.

A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. impaired debts are derecognized when they are
assessed as uncoliectible.

Likewise, it was also established that accounts outstanding for less than a year should have no
provision for impairment but accounts outstanding over a year should have a 100% provision, which
was arrived at after assessing individually significant balances. Provision for individually non-
significant balances was made on a portfolio or group basis after performing the regular review of the
age and status of the individual accounts and portfolio/group of accounts relative to historical
collections, changes in payment terms and other factors that may affect ability to collect payments.

AFS Financial Assets. For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at each financial assets
reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, an objective evidence of impairment include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financiat asset previously recognized in
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the consohdated statement of income, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized
in the consolldated statement of income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair value after impairment are
recognizedi directly in other comprehensive income.

Assels Car:ried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Afsset_ A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

» the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

» the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controt of the
asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred:nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liability. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged; cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantiaily
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statements of
income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost is determined on the
weighted average method. NRYV of inventories that are for sale, is the selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the costs of marketing and distribution. NRV of inventories not held for sale
is the current replacement cost. Unrealizable inventories are written off,



Pregroducfion Expenses
Preproduction expenses, included under “Other current assets™ account in the consolidated statement

of financial position, represent costs incurred prior to the airing of the programs or episodes. These
costs include talent fees of artists and production staff and other costs directly attributable fo
production ‘of programs. These are charged to expense upon airing of the related programs or
episodes. Costs related to previously taped episodes determined not to be aired are charged to
expense. .

Investments in Associates

The Companys investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
An assomate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanymg a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the
associate (including share in other comprehensive income} less any impairment in vaiue. Goodwil
relating to an asscciate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized.
The consolidated statements of income reflects the share on the results of operations of an associate.
When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Where there has been a
change recognlzed as other comprehensive income of the associate, the Company recognizes its
share in any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

The financial reporting dates of the associates and the Company are identical and the associates’
accounting policies conform to those used by the Company for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Unrealized intercompany profits arising from the transactions with the associate are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are carried at cost (including capitalized interest), excluding the
costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated
impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Subscriber's initial installation costs, including materials, labor and overhead costs are capitalized as
part of distribution equipment (included in the “Television, radio, movie and auxiliary equipment”
account) and depreciated over a period no longer than the depreciation period of the distribution
equipment. The costs of subsequent disconnection and reconnection are charged to the current
operations.

Unissued spare parts and supplies represent major spare parts that can be used only in connection
with the distribution equipment. Unissued spare parts and supplies are not depreciated but tested for
impairment until these become available for use. These are included in the “*Other equipment”
account.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line method over the property and
equipment’s useful lives. The useful lives of the Company's assets are estimated as follows:

Asset Type Number of Years
Land improvements 5 to 10 or term of the lease,

i whichever is shorter
Buildings and improvements 15 to 40 or term of the lease,
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whichever is shorter
5t0 15
21011

TeIeVIsmn radio, movie and auxiliary equipment
Other equment

Each comp,onent of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item of property and equipment is depreciated separately.

The properiy and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Construction in progress represents equipment under instaliation and building under construction and
is stated at'cost which includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress
is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and available for operational
use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(caiculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated statements of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization in the
case of intangible assets with finite lives, and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
|mpa|rment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash-generatlng unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportabie. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

A summary of the policies applied to ABS-CBN's acquired intangible assets is as follows:

Impairment
Testing/ Current and
Amortization Recoverable Noncurrent
Intangible Asset | Useful Lives Method Used Amount Testing | Portion
Program Rights Finite (license term | Amortized on the | If the remaining Based on the
or economic life, | basis of program expected benefit estimated year of
whichever is usage, except for | period is shorter usage except CPI,
shorter) program rights of | than the which is based on
CPI, which is Company’s initial | license term
amortized on a estimates, the
straight-line Company
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Impairment
Testing/ Current and
Amortization Recoverable Noncurrent
Intangible Asset | Useful Lives Method Used Amount Testing | Portion
method over the accelerates
license term or amortization of the
economic life, purchase price or
whichever is license fee.
shorter.
Program rights are
Expired program | written off when no
rights are fulty future economic
amortized on the benefits are
date of expiry. expected to flow
from the assets.
Unaired program
rights with no
definite expiration
date are amortized
after 5 years from
acquisition date
(i.e., equally over
the next five years)
Story, Music and | Finite (useful Amortized on the | If the remaining Based on the

Publication Rights

economic benefit)

basis of the useful
economic life

expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cOst.

estimated year of
usage

Movie In-process

Finite

No amortization,
recognized as
expense upon

If the unamortized
film cost is less
than the fair value

Based on the
estimated year of
usage

showing of the film, the
asset is written
down to its
recoverable
amount.
Video Rights and | Finite (six months | Amortized on the | If the remaining Current
Record Master or 10,000 copies basis of number of | expected benefit
sold of video discs | copies sold. period is shorter
and tapes, than the
whichever comes Company’s initial
first) estimates, the

Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.
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Intangible Asset

Useful Lives

Amortization
Method Used

Impairment
Testing/
Recoverable
Amount Testing

Current and
Noncurrent
Portion

Customer
Relationships
(see Note 4a)

Finite - 25 years

Amortized on a
straight-line basis
over the estimated
customer service
life

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial

Noncurrent

estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Cable Channels -
CPI

Indefinite No amortization Annually and more | Noncurrent
frequently when an
indication of

impairment ¢xists

Amortized on a Noncurrent
straight-line basis
over the period of

25 years

Production and
Distribution
Business - Middle
East '

Finite - 25 years If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company's initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the

cost.

InvestmentiProperties
Investment properties, except land, are measured at cost, including transaction costs, less

accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time the cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met, and excludes day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Land is stated at cost
less any impairment in value.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sale.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If the property
occupied by the Company as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property and
equipment™up to the date of change in use.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.
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Tax Credits

Tax credits from government airtime sales availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362 are
recognized lupon actual airing of government commercials and advertisements. These are included
under "Other noncurrent assets™ account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is an indication that property
and equipment, investment properties, program rights and other intangible assets with finite lives and
tax credits may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

For nonfinancial assets, other than goodwill and cable channels, an assessment is made at each
financial reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. After such
a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
useful life.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific nonfinancial assets:

Goodwill and Cable Channels. Goodwill and cable channels are reviewed for impairment, annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Impalrment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit {or group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
{or group of cash generating units) to which the goodwill and cable channels has been allocated, an
impairment loss is recegnized in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in subsequent increases in its recoverable amount in future periods. The
Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill and cable channels as of December 31 of
each year.

Investments in Associates. After application of the equity method of accounting, the Company
determines. whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the
Company's net investment in the associate. The Company determines at each reporting date
whaether there is any objective evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the
case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the impairment in the
consolldated statement of income.



Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from proceeds, net of tax.
Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Revenue

Revenue isirecognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The Company
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

= Airtime revenue is recognized as income on the dates the advertisements are aired. Such
revenues are adjusted for agency commissions, incentives, and co-producers’ share for
presentation in the consolidated statement of income. The fair values of barter transactions from
advertising time exchanged for program materials, merchandise or service are included in airtime
revenue and the related accounts. Payments received before broadcast (pay before broadcast)
for customers without credit terms are initially recognized as liability and are included as part of
“Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated statement of financial position. These
are applied against receivables upon airing and recognition of related revenue. Pay before
broadcast for customers with credit terms are credited directly to “Trade receivables” under
“Trade and other receivables” account in the consolidated statement of financial position. These
are recognized as income on the dates the advertisements are aired.

= Sale of services include:

a. Subscription fees which are recognized as follows:

DTH Subscribers and Cable Operators. Subscription fees are recognized under the accrual
basis in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Share in DirecTV Subscription Revenue. Subscription revenue from subscribers of DirecTV
who subscribe to the “The Filipino Channel” is recognized in accordance with the Deal
Memorandum..

Subscription Revenue from ABS-CBN Now. Subscription revenue from online streaming
services of Filipino-oriented content and programming is received in advance (included as
“Deferred revenue” under “Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated statement
of financial posmon) and is deferred and recognized as revenue over the period during which
the service is performed.

Cable Subscribers. Subscription fees are recognized under the accrual basis in accordance
with the terms of the agreements. Subscription fees billed or collected in advance are
deférred {included as "Deferred revenue” under “Trade and other payables” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position) and recognized as revenue when service is
rendered.

b. Telecommunications revenue is recognized when earned. These are stated net of the share
of the other telecommunications carriers, if any, under existing correspondence and
interconnection agreements. Interconnection fees and charges are based on agreed rates
with the other telecommunications carriers.

Incdme from prepaid phone cards are realized based on actual usage hours or expiration of
the unused value of the card, whichever comes earlier. Income from prepaid card sales for
which the related services have not been rendered as of financial reporting date is presented
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as ‘;‘Other payables” under “Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

c. Channel lease revenue is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

|
d. Income from film exhibition is recognized, net of theater shares on the dates the film are
shown.
e. Income from TV rights and cable rights are recognized on the dates the films are permitted to
be publicly shown as stipulated in the agreement.

f. Pay-per-view fees are recognized on the date the movies or special programé are viewed.

g. Short-messaging-system/texi-based revenue, sale of news materials and Company-produced
programs, included under “Sale of Services” account in the consolidated statement of
income, are recognized upon delivery.

= Sale ofigoods is recognized when delivery has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards has
been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts, returns and allowances.

= License fees earned from DirecTV are recognized upon migration of the DTH subscribers of
ABS-CBN International to DirecTV. The additional license fees for each migrated subscriber that
will remain for 14 consecutive months from the date of activation, will be recognized on the 14th
month..

Other income is recognized as follows:

* Royaity income, included under “Sale of Services” account in the consolidated statement of
income, is recognized upon rendering of service hased on the terms of the agreement and is
reduced to the extent of the share of the composers or co-publishers of the songs produced for
ongmal sound recording.

= Income;and related costs pertaining to installation of decoders and set-top boxes which has no
stand alone value without the subscription revenue are aggregated and recognized ratably over
the longer of subscription contract term or the estimated customer service life. These are
presented as part of “Other noncurrent assets” (under “Deferred charges”) and “Trade and other
payables™ account (under “Deferred revenue™), respectively, in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

» Connection /reconnection/disconnection fees included as part of “Other income” account in the
consolidated statements of income are recognized when the services are rendered.

* Management fees, included as part of “Other income” account in the consolidated statement of
income, are recognized based on the terms of the management agreement.

= Rental incoms, included as part of “Other income” account in the consolidated statement of
income, is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

= Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset.

= Dividends, included as part of “Other income” account in the consolidated statement of income,
are recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.

Agency Commissions, Incentives and Co-producers’ Share
These represent deductions from gross airtime revenues in the consolidated statement of income.
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Agency commissions are recognized at a standard rate of 15%.
i

Incentives i!nclude early payment and early placement discounts as well as commissions paid to the
Company's?account executives and cable operators. Early payment discount is recognized upon
payment. Early placement discount, which represents discount given to agencies and advertisers as
a result of early request for telecast order, is recognized upon airing.

Co-producers’ share on revenues of specific programs is recognized upon airing.

Leases

The determination whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Company as a Lessee

Finance Leases. Finance |leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining batance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly against the consolidated statements of income.

Capitalized ;Ieased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term.

Company as a Lessor

Operating Leases. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operatlng leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of

outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than
those relating to distribution to equity participant. Cost and expenses other than those with specific
policies are.recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year these are incurred.

Channei Liqense Fees
Channel license fees included under “Cost of sales and services” account in the consolidated
statements of income are charged to operations in the year these fees are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effectlof the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense under
"Finance co;sts" in the consolidated statements of income.
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Customers'i Deposits

Customers’ deposits, included as part of “Other noncurrent liabilities” account in the consolidated
statement o'f financial position, are initially recognized at fair value. The discount is recognized as
deferred credlts and amortized over the estimated remaining term of the deposit using the effective
interest method

Asset Retlrg ment Obiigation
The net present value of legal obligations associated with the retirement of an item of property and

equipment that resulted from the acquisition, construction or development and the normal operations
of property and equipment is recognized in the period in which it is incurred and a reasonable
estimate of the obligation can be made. This is included as part of “Other noncurrent liabilities”
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. The related asset retirement cost is
capitalized under “Property and equipment” account in the consoclidated statements of financial
position and is being depreciated on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing ¢osts
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset that

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized
as part of the cost of respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Pension Costs

The Company has funded (the Parent Company, ABS-CBN and Sky Cable) and unfunded (other
subsudlanes) noncontributory defined pension benefit plans, except for ABS-CBN International which
has a deflned contribution pension plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan
is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative
unrecognized actuariat gains and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous financial
reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average remaining
working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The defined benefit asset or liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation {using a discount rate based on Philippine bonds) and actuarial gains and losses not
recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized, and the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measured
at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and
past service cost and the present vaiue of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

For ABS-CBN International, the defined contribution pension plan is composed of the contribution of
ABS-CBN international or employee (or both) to the employee’s individual account. These
contributions generally are invested on behalf of the employee through American Funds. Employees
ultimately receive the balance in their account, which is based on contributions plus or minus
investment gains or losses. The value of each account will fluctuate due to changes in the value of
investments.

The amount of the Company's contribution to the defined contribution pension plan is recognized as
expense in _the period incurred.
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Income Taxes

|

|
Current Incbme Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at reporting
date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
consolidated statements of income.

Deferred lncome Tax. Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on ali temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax {MCIT) over
regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCQ), to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credit from excess MCIT over RCIT
and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized when it arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on nontaxable temporary differences associated with
investments in domestic subsidiaries and associates. With respect to investments in other
subsidiaries and associates, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeabie future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
measured at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted as at reporting date.

Deferred i mcome tax relating to iterns recognized outside the profit or loss is recognized in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and not in the
consolidated statements of income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same tax authority.

Retained Earnings

The amount included in retained earnings includes profit attributable to the Company's equity holders
and reduced by dividends on capital stock. Dividends on capital stock are recognized as a liability
and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Company's stockholders, Dividends for the
year that are approved after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the financial
reporting date.
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Retained earnings may also include effect of changes in accounting policy as may be required by
new standalrds’ transitional provisions.

|
Earnings Per Share (EPS) Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Company for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year, with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends and stock spilit.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net income attributable to the equity
holders of the Parent Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares from the conversion of Perpetual Convertible
Bonds. The number of common shares is the weighted average number of common shares plus the
weighted average number of common shares which would be issued upon the conversion of all the
dilutive potential common shares into common shares. For calculation purposes, Perpetual
Convertible; Bonds are deemed to have been converted into common shares at the date of issuance
of the convertible bonds.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Event after :Regorting Date
Post yearend events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at

financial reporting date (adjusting events) is reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post
yearend evénts that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when material.

Segment Reporting

For managément purposes, the Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed
separately according to nature of business activities. Such business segments are the bases upon
which the Company reports its operating segment information. The Company operates in three
geographical areas where it derives its revenue.

Financial information on segment reporting is presented in Note 4 - Segment Information.

4. Segment Information
Segment information is prepared on the following bases:

Business Segments

For management purposes, the Company’s main businesses are investment holdings and
broadcasting and entertainment. Broadcasting and entertainment is further segmented into three
business activities - broadcasting, cable and satellite, and other businesses. This segmentation is the
basis upon which the Company reports its primary segment information.

Broadcasting segment is principally the television and radio broadcasting activities which generate
revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.

Cabie and satellite business primarily develops and produces programs for cable television, including
delivery of television programming cutside the Philippines through its DTH satellite service, cable
television channels and blocked time on television stations. In 2008, as a result of the conversion of
Sky Cable Note issued to ABS-CBN (see Note 2a), the cable and satellite business include cable



-28-

television slervices of Sky Cable and its subsidiaries in Metro Manila and in certain provincial areas in
the Philippir|1es.

i
Other businesses include movie production, consumer products and services. The Company’s
remaining activity includes information service.

Geograghicial Segments
Although the Company is organized into three business activities, it operates in three major

geographical areas. In the Philippines, its home country, ABS-CBN is involved in broadcasting, cable
operations and other businesses. In the United States and in other locations (which includes Middle
East, Europe, Australia, Canada and Japan), ABS-CBN operates its cable and satellite operations to
bring television programming outside the Philippines.

Inter-segment Transactions

Segment revenue, segment expense and segment results include transfers among business
segments and geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices
charged to unrelated customers for similar services. Such transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

Management monitors operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit and
loss in the consolidated financial statements.,

On a consolidated basis, the Company's performance is evaluated based on consolidated net income
for the year and earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization (EBITDA). Net
income for the year is measured consistent with consolidated net income in the consolidated financial
statements;

5. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Effective March 31, December 31,
Interest 2010 2009
Current
Parent Company:
7.875% Notes 7.875% R2,011 2,058
LTCPs. 875 875
ABS-CBN:
Bank loans 5.00% 400 400
Long-term debt under Senior Credit
Agreement (SCA) 6.72% 119 106
Obligations under capital lease 101 119
m3,507 R3,558
Noncurrent:
Parent Company:
4.2% Perpetual Convertible Bonds 4.2% - R12
ABS-CBN:-
Long-term debt under SCA
(net of transaction costs and debt discount) 6.75% 8,253 8,623
Obligation under capital lease 46 75

8,308 m8,352
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6. Earnings{loss) Per Share (EPS} attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

|
The followir:ng reflects the income {loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings(loss}
per share computations:

2010 2009
(Amounts in Millions, except Number of Shares)

(a) Income{loss) attributable to equity holders

of the parent R11,023 (R82)
Interest on convertible bonds and amortization
of bond issue cost 1 1
{b) Net income(loss) attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company - diluted R11,024 {R81)
(c) Weighted average number of common
shares - basic 4,582,356,268 4,581,544,408
Conversion of bonds 3,421,410 3,421,410
(d) Adjusted weighted average common
shares — diluted 4,585,777,678 4,584,965,818
Per Share Amounts
Basic (a/c) R2.405 (R0.038)
Diluted (b/d) 2.404 {0.038)

There haveé been no other transactions involving shares or potential shares between the financial
reporting date and the date of completion of these consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

BENPRES? HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By:

A. VICTORIA M. MARCELINO May 17, 2010

AVP - Financial Controls q’Nﬂ Date

May 17, 2010
Date

May 17, 2010
Date
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